CULTURE, HERITAGE AND LIBRARIES COMMITTEE

Monday, 5 December 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee held at Guildhall on Monday, 5 December 2016 at 11.00 am

Present

Members:

Vivienne Littlechild (Chairman) Alderman Alastair King

Graham Packham (Deputy Chairman)

Deputy John Bennett

Mark Boleat

Deputy Billy Dove

Deputy Kevin Everett

Anne Fairweather

Stuart Fraser

Paul Martinelli

Jeremy Mayhew

Sylvia Moys

Barbara Newman

Ann Pembroke

Delis Regis

Jeremy Simons

Alderman Sir Roger Gifford Deputy John Tomlinson (Ex-Officio Member)

Alderman Alison Gowman Mark Wheatley

Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines Graeme Harrower Tom Hoffman Ann Holmes Wendy Hyde

In Attendance

Helen Marriage - Artichoke

Officers:

David Pearson - Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries
Nick Bodger - Culture, Heritage and Libraries Department
Christopher Earlie - Culture, Heritage and Libraries Department
Margaret Jackson - Culture, Heritage and Libraries Department
Geoff Pick - Culture, Heritage and Libraries Department
Sara Pink - Culture, Heritage and Libraries Department

Mark Jarvis - Chamberlain's Department

Julie Mayer - Town Clerk's

Andrew Buckingham - Public Relations Office, Town Clerk's

Steven Chandler - City Surveyor's Department

Simon Glynn - Department of the Built Environment Ian Hughes - Department of the Built Environment

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Deputy Jamie Ingham Clark, Judith Pleasance, Keith Bottomley, Deputy Richard Regan, Deputy Dr Giles Shilson and Deputy John Absalom.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

- Mrs Sylvia Moys declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of agenda item 11 (City Arts Initiative) by virtue of her position as a Governor of the City of London School.
- Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of agenda item 11 (City Arts Initiative) by virtue of his position as a Governor of the City of London School.
- Mr Tom Hoffman declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of agenda item 13 (Special Events in March 2018) by virtue of his position as a Governor of Guy's and St Thomas' NHS Foundation Trust.
- Mr Mark Wheatley declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of item 13 (Special Events in March 2018) by virtue of his position as an independent (non-Trustee) Director of 'Baby Fun Trading'; a company associated with Tommys.

3. MINUTES

The public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 24th October 2016 were approved.

Matters arising

The Chairman of the IS Sub Committee, who is also a Member of this Committee, had offered to provide Members with an update on IT performance. The Chairman had submitted apologies for today's meeting but referred Members to a report being presented to the Court of Common Council on 8 December 2016, which would provide a detailed update.

4. **DRAFT MINUTES OF THE KEATS HOUSE CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE**The draft minutes of the meeting of the Keats House Consultative Committee held on 27 October 2016 were received.

5. DRAFT MINUTES OF THE BENEFICES SUB COMMITTEE

The draft minutes of the meeting of the Benefices Sub Committee held on 20 October 2016 were received.

6. CULTURE HERITAGE & LIBRARIES BUSINESS PLAN 2016-2019 - QUARTER 2 MONITORING REVIEW

The Committee received a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries which set out business plan progress made in Quarter 2 against the key objectives and performance indicators in the Department's Business Plan for 2016-19.

Some Members had recently visited the City Information Centre and been very impressed with the staff and management. The Chairman advised Members that the staff had been particularly flexible during the weekend of the Great Fire Commemorations (at agenda item 10) by remaining on duty until late in the evening. Members also noted the Town Clerk's recent email in respect of a delegation from Osaka Convention Bureau, to the City Information Centre, in order to benchmark their operations ahead of preparing for the Rugby World Cup in 3 years.

RESOLVED, that – the report be noted.

7. REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGETS 2017/18

The Committee considered a report of the Chamberlain which presented the annual submission of the Revenue and Capital Budgets overseen by the Committee. Members were pleased to note the LMA roof repairs were considerably under budget and on time.

RESOLVED, that -

- 1. The provisional 2017/18 revenue budget be approved for submission to the Finance Committee;
- 2. The draft Capital Budget be approved;
- 3. the Chamberlain, in consultation with the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries, (or his successor), be authorised to revise these budgets to allow for any implications arising from departmental reorganisations, in particular the CHL Reorganisation report and any amendments to Corporate Projects and other reviews and changes to the Additional Works Programme.

8. GUILDHALL LIBRARY CENTENARY FUND: TRUSTEES ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain in respect of the Trustees Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2016 for the Guildhall Library Centenary Fund, presented in the format required by the Charity Commission. Members suggested that, given this was such a small fund, they would welcome a set of proposals from officers as to its future management.

RESOLVED, that -

- 1. The report be noted.
- 2. Members receive a report at the next meeting of the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee as to the future management of the Guildhall Library Centenary Fund.

9. KEATS HOUSE: TRUSTEES ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain in respect of the Trustees Annual report for Keats House for the Year ended 31 March 2016, presented in the format required by the Charity Commission.

RESOLVED, that – the report be noted.

10. GREAT FIRE 350: MONITORING AND EVALUATION

The Committee received a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries, together with a presentation from Ms Helen Marriage of Artichoke, which provided monitoring and evaluation information in respect of the Great Fire Commemorations 350 in September 2016.

During the discussion, the following points were noted:

- 80% of visitors would not have been in London that weekend had it not been for the event.
- Artichoke commended the Planning Department for their assistance with road closures.
- Members had visited the structure when it was being built during the summer of 2016 and particularly commended the involvement of young people who had gained valuable skills and work experience. Ms Marriage agreed to chase for feedback in respect of a careers event which had been held at the Barbican in October and would confirm the number of full time jobs created as a result of the project. In respect of a question on the economic value of the event, Ms Marriage also agreed to follow this up with the Audience Agency and report back to Members.

In concluding, Ms Marriage thanked the City of London Corporation for the opportunity of working with them on such an engaging project and would very much like to work together in the future.

RESOLVED, that – the report and presentation be noted.

11. CITY ARTS INITIATIVE RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries in respect of the recommendations of the recent meeting of the City Arts Initiative.

Members welcomed the recommendation in respect of Blackfriars Bridge Foreshore and its value in engaging with pupils from the City of London School. Members would also be willing to support similar initiatives which could involve all City of London Schools and Academies.

The Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries advised Members of a late submission from Marie Curie for a 'garden of light'; i.e. a garden of artificial daffodils close by St Pauls, in a similar display to the 'Poppies at the Tower' in 2014. Members noted that the display would be part of an awareness campaign for cancer research, to last for 8 days in March 2017. Given that the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee would not meet again until 6 February 2017, the application would need to be processed between meetings in order to meet the timescales for the project. Members noted that the application had been circulated to all Members of the CAI and all of them had supported the proposal.

RESOLVED, that:

- Blackfriars Bridge Foreshore hoarding commission Air Map be approved subject to credits appearing in pavement sections only; consultation being undertaken and acknowledgement of the City of London School being clearly shown.
- 2. Marie Curie the 'Garden of Light' authority be delegated to the Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee to progress this application.

12. EASTERN CITY CLUSTER - PUBLIC ART (YEAR 6 & 7-9) - GATEWAY 6 - UPDATE REPORT

The Committee considered a report of the Director of the Built Environment, which updated members on 'Sculpture in the City'. Members particularly valued this project as it showcased a lot of high quality work and commended the artists who had been working with young people.

RESOLVED, that –

- 1. The contents of this update report be noted.
- 2. The project be retained in-house for the next three years.
- 3. Any underspend from previous years be transferred to future years of the project.
- 4. The appointment and/or procurement of all services associated with the delivery of the project for years 2017-19 be approved, in accordance with Section 5 of the report.
- 5. Authority be delegated to the Director of Transportation and Public Realm and Head of Finance to adjust the project budget between staff costs, fees and works (and between Years 7-9), provided that the overall budget is not exceeded.

13. SPECIAL EVENTS IN MARCH 2018

The Committee considered a report of the Director of the Built Environment in respect of two applications for new half marathons to be run in March 2018. The report before Members sought their views as to whether either (or both) events should be supported. Members also noted that the final decision would lie with TfL and the Director of the Built Environment's delegated authority to close roads for special events.

Some Members raised concerns about the volume of such events in the City and the disruption to residents. In responding to the above concerns, the Director of the Built Environment advised Members that the Streets and Walkways Sub Committee, which would also be considering this report, regularly received a matrix document which managed the frequency of these events. Members also noted that, currently, the number of events expected in 2018 was relatively low and they would receive a report reviewing the events of 2016 at their next meeting in February 2017.

In concluding, Members supported option 2(a) in the report, with a clear preference to support Tommy's proposal, in accordance with the significant additional cultural benefit to the City.

RESOLVED, That:

- 1. Support be given to the London Landmarks Half Marathon (Tommy's) event to take place in the City (subject to detailed traffic management design, communications planning & safety assessment);
- 2. the City's concerns regarding the addition of further events to the event calendar in general, beyond the London Landmarks Half Marathon, be reiterated to TfL:
- 3. The City make it clear to TfL that should only one event be thought appropriate for this time of year, the City's clear preference would be to support the Tommy's proposal, in accordance with the significant additional benefit to the City as illustrated in the assessment matrix

14. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

A Member who had recently visited Artizan Street Library and Community Centre was concerned at the lack of signage for those travelling from Bishopsgate. Members noted that signage in the City of London Corporation was being addressed as part of a wider project by the Department of the Built Environment.

The Member had also noticed an unpleasant odour from the lavatories and was concerned about the possibility of unresolved ventilation issues. The Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries advised that there had been a history of problems since the building opened in 2012, which he had endeavoured to remedy and final works were carried out over the Summer this year. Members noted that the latest update from the City Surveyor advised that the works been completed on 18th October and any residual heating/ventilation defects would be reported to the Contractor, via the City Surveyor's Department. As the

Member had visited the Library on 7th November, Members found this unsatisfactory and were concerned about the possibility of sanitation issues and the risk to the City of London Corporation's reputation, should the problem continue. As the Committee would not meet again until February 2017, Members asked for remedial action to be taken without further delay.

RESOLVED, that – the City Surveyor be asked to note the concerns of the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee about ongoing ventilation and sanitation issues at the Artizan Street Library and Community Centre and submit a proposal for urgent remedial action, to be approved under delegated authority to the Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee.

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT There were no items.

16. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Item Nos.	<u>Paragraph No.</u>
17-22	3
23	1,2 & 3

At 12.55pm, Members agreed to suspend standing orders in order to approve the business on the agenda

17. NON PUBLIC MINUTES

The non-public minutes of the meeting held 24th October were approved.

18. **NON PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE BENEFICES SUB COMMITTEE**The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 20th October were received.

19. LONDON METROPOLITAN ARCHIVES (LMA) - FUTURE ACCOMMODATION PLANNING - GATEWAY 1/2 ISSUES REPORT

The Committee received a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries which had been approved by the Projects Sub Committee on 23rd November 2016.

20. TOWER BRIDGE AND MONUMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT APRIL TO SEPTEMBER 2016

The Committee received a report of the Director of Culture, Heritage and Libraries in respect of Tower Bridge and Monument Performance between April and September 2016.

21. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

22. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no items.

23. **RESTRUCTURING OF CULTURE, HERITAGE & LIBRARIES DEPARTMENT** Members considered a confidential report of the Town Clerk.

The meeti	ng ended	at 1.25 pm
Chairman		

Contact Officer: Julie Mayer tel. no.: 020 7332 1410

julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk